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United Methodist Church, Ipswich, Massachusetts

E. & G. G. Hook, Boston, Mass., Op. 406, 1867.

original stoplist
Great: 56 notes Swell: 56 notes, enclosed
Bourdon TC 16' 44w Keraulophon TC 844 m
Op. Diap. 8 56 m St. Diap. Treble TC 8 44w
Dulciana TC 8 44m St. Diap. Bass 8 12w
Melodia TC 844w Flute Harmonique 4' 56 m
St. Diap. Bass 8 12w Oboe TC 8 44m
Octave 4' 56 m Bassoon 8 12m
Fifteenth 2' 56 m Tremulant
Mixture 1112 m Pedal Movements:
Pedale: 27 notes 2 unlabeled single-acting pedals
Sub Bass 16' 27 w (Gr. piano and forte)
balanced Swell pedal (formerly a
Couplers: hitch-down)

Swell to Great
Great to Pedale
Swell to Pedale

This congregation, organized in 1822, put
up their first church building in 1824. The
present frame structure was dedicated in
January 1861. A paper in the church
records, undated, but probably written late in
1866, reads as follows:

"Know all persons that we the under-
signed members of Methodist Episcopal
Church and Society of Ipswich on this cen-
tennial anniversary of Methodism in the
United States of America for and in con-
sideration of the great benefits which we have
derived by the preaching and practice of
Methodist doctrines and usages and in tes-
timony of our regards for the same do hereby
agree to give the sums set against our names
for the purpose of purchasing an Organ for
the use of said Church and society forever,
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TREMONT STREET, (near Roxbury Lme,) BOSTON .
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Bellows Signal
mechanical action

and we further ordain that this book of
records shall be kept in a safe and careful
manner by the Treasurer of said Church and
society so that it may be transmitted to future
generations."

On 22 March 1867, the "Committee ap-
pointed to collect money reported that Two
thousand, one hundred sixty dollars and
sixty-five cents had been subscribed, all of
which has been paid... Much credit is due to
Rev. Jesse Wagner, as mainly through his ef-
forts the Organ was obtained."

The interior of the church was renovated
in 1942, at which time the handsome black
walnut case was hidden behind a screen. In
recent years, the Keraulophon &' was
replaced by Roy E. H. Carlson of Magnolia,
Massachusetts, with a full compass Flute 2.

MARUPACTURERD OF .
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The E. & G. G. Hook organ of 1864

stops) was given some modifications

1914, rebuilt with electric pulldown
actions by E. M. Skinner in 1949, and
then completely reworked in 1960 by
Williams Co. S8ince only 20%Z of the
original Hook remained when work began
“rebuilding" the organ, a new instrument

af 32 stops and 39 ranks was designed in
the style of an 18464 Hook using most of
the Hook parts which could be
preserved. The new key and stopactions
are mechanical. An electric combination
action with two levels of memory and 20
pistons activates the mechanical
stopaction. A Hook style censole has
been created with 58 note manual
compass, 32 note pedal compassy and /.
specially turned Rosewood drawknobs with (&)
ivory faces engraved with script J o
lettering. The original Hook organ &)
inspired E. M. Skinner whose father was ¢
soloist at this church.

Roche Organ Co., Inc. = Opus 28, 1987
THE GREAT GRGAN THE SWELL ORGAN THE PEDAL ORGAN

1467 BourdonX B’ Stopped Diapason¥ 32 Open Diapason

8* Open Diapason 8” Viola Open Diapason
Chimney Flute 8’ Cealeste Bourdon
Gemshorn 4*  Principal Cellog
Octavex 4* Spireflute Bourdon
Flauto Traversok 2 2/3° Nazard Choral Bass
Twelfth 2* Doublet Mixture 27
FifteenthX 1 3/5° Tierce Trombone
Seventeenth 1 173’ Quinte
Mixture 1 1/3° IIIr Mixture 17 ¥ranks from the
Trumpet 146’ Bassoon 1864 E. & G. G.
Clarion 8’ Oboe Hook organ.

Tremulant

ROCHE ORGAN COMPANY, INC.

799 West Water Street Taunton, Massachusetts 02780

MECHANICAL ACTION ORGANS
PHONE: (617) 823-0236




First Parish Church, Congregational
Manchester, Massachusells
Thursday, 13 August 1987, 10:15 a.m.

Lois Regestein, organ

Three Early Pieces Thomas Arne
Voluntary in C (1710-1778)
Variations on "Yankee Doodle" Edward L. White
(1809-1851)
Federal March (1788) Alexander Reinagle
(composed for the July 4th, 1788 celebration in Philadelphia (1756-1809)

"in honor of the ratification of the Federal Constitution by Ten of the States")
Symphony II Op. 13 No. 2 Charles-Marie Widor
Pastorale (1844-1937)

Two Fugues

Pink Panther (1986) Guy Bovet
(b. 1942)
Fugue in C minor, Op. 36 No. 3 Horatio Parker

(1863-1919)

Hymn: O God, Our Help in Ages Past (St. Anne)
introduced by a prelude by W. T. Best (1826-1897)

Lois Regestein is a graduate of the Yale School of Music and is
currently organist of the First Congregational Church of Winchester,
Mass. As chairman of the Organ Projects Committee of the Boston
A.G.O. and member of the Boston Preservation Alliance, she has
devoted much of this past year to the effort to preserve the 1863 E.
& G. G. Hook organ in Boston's Immaculate Conception Church,
and to a fund-raising project to restore the water-damaged 1883
Hook & Hastings in First Church, Roxbury. She is well known as a
recitalist, and has performed at many OHS conventions.

MAINTENANC;Z VERNON H. WHITE REPAIR
PIPE ORGAN SERVICE

6245 3RD AVE. N.
ST. PETERSBURG, FL. 33710
TUNING PHONE (813) 343-3012 RESTORATIONS

om0 | B ABCTIATES
6-9 August 6 LEDGEWOOD ROAD
WILMINGTON, MASS. 01887

location recording — record production

Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Phyllis Frankenstein, Registrar

120 Dana Drive 617-658-6565
Beaver Dam, Wisconsin 53916
414/885-3134 SCOTT KENT
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First Parish Church, Congregatlonal Manchester, Massachusetts

E. & G. G. Hook, Boston, Mass., Op. 298, 1861
altered by Hook & Hastings, Boston, Mass., 1909
and by Roy E. H. Carlson, Magnolia, Mass., c.1963

present stoplist

Great: 56 notes

Open Diapason 8 56 m
Viol D'Amour 8 56m
Melodia TC 8 4w
Std. Diapason Bass 8 12w
Principal 4' 56 m
Chimney Flute TC 4'44m
Mixture (on electric action) 11168 m
Pedal: 30 notes
Double Open Diapason 16' 30w

Pedal Check

Bellows Signal
balanced Swell pedal
mechanical action

This congregation's first meetinghouse
was built in 1656; the second was built in
1691. The third one, dating from 1719, was
replaced with the present frame building in
1809, at a cost of eighty-five hundred dollars.
The interior was rededicated after remodeling
in 1845 (or 1847 or 1856--sources differ); an
organ donated by Capt. Richard Trask and
Mrs. Sarah Allen was used for the first time at
the rededication, and an original hymn by
Wm. B. Tappan was sung. The organ was
second-hand rather than new, and it appears
to have been a substantial two-manual instru-
ment originally built by Thomas Appleton in
1831 for the Salem Street Congregational
Church in Boston, which was replaced there
in 1846 by a three-manual Simmons & Mc-
Intyre. It seems to have served in Manchester
until around 1890, when it was replaced by
the present instrument, also second-hand.

The Vermont Standard, Woodstock, Ver-
mont, reported in its issue of 10 May 1861
that the new organ in the Congregational
Church, built by E. & G. G. Hook, was to be
opened that evening by W. H. Clarke; the
concert, admission to which cost 25 cents, in-
cluded "Overtures and Selections from

LOIS REGESTEIN Recitals
Boston, Massachusetts 617 /739-1340
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Swell: 56 notes, enclosed
Bourdon Treble TC 16' 44 w
Bourdon Bass (unencl.) 16' 12w
Open Diapason TC &8 44m
Viole de Gambe TC 8 44m
Std. Diapason Treble TC 8 44 w&m
Std. Diapason Bass 8 12w
Principal 4' 56 m
Twelfth 22/3' 56 m
Fifteenth 2'56 m
Hautbois TC 8 44m
Tremulant (notched)

Couplers:
Swell to Great
Great to Pedal
Swellto Pedal

Mozart, Rossini, Flotow, Bellini, Verdi, and
Mendelssohn, with Anthems and Choruses
by the Choir of the Church." The Hook
organ, Op. 298, 1861, replaced an 1827 in-
strument, and was itself replaced by a large
two-manual Geo. S. Hutchings, Op. 199,
1890, at which time the 1861 organ went to
Manchester-by-the-Sea, moved by Hook &
Hastings.

Hook & Hastings enlarged the pedal
compass and altered the Swell pedal in 1909,
and Roy Carlson added an electric-action
Mixture to the Great in the 1960's. He also
provided new stop labels, many of which do
not have the same nomenclature as the
originals. Nos. 3-21 of the Great Open
Diapason 8' are in the black walnut case;
nos. 1 and 2 are inside. The Great Chimney
Flute 4', originally named "Flute 4" on the
knob, is indeed a metal chimney flute, as is
the Swell Std. Diapason Treble 8'. The Viol
D'Amour 8 is a bell gamba and is in the spot
where a Trumpet 8' would ordinarily be
found, which suggests that one may have
been there when the organ was new. The
Hautboy 8 (as it was styled originally) is
probab]y a replacement set.

ﬂr%auﬁawpeﬁco

Associate Editor, The American Orpentst
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Jardine & Son Opus 1123 1893 Yarmouth, Maine Relocated through The Organ Clearing House

Pavid) &. Wallace

RESTORING MAINE’S HISTORIC PIPE ORGANS

P.O. BOX 573
GORHAM, MAINE 04038
(207) 839-6291




Nahant Village Church, U.C.C.
Nahant, Massachusetts
Thursday, 13 August 1987, 1:00 p.m.

Brian Jones, organ

Concertoin A Major J. G. Walther
Adagio (1684-1748)
Andante Allegro

Noél: "Where have the Ha/)/ly Shepherds gone?" Claude Balbastre

(1727-1799)

Petit Prelude Joseph fongen

(1873-1953)
Fugue in G minor, BWV 577 ("Gigue") J. S. Bach
(1685-1750)

Sonata in E-flat minor Horatio Parker
Allegretto (1863-1919)

War March of the Priests Felix Mendelssohn

(1809-1847)
Hymn: O be Joyful in the Lord (Rock of Ages)

Brian Jones holds degrees from Oberlin College and Boston
University, and is currently Director of Music at Trinity Church, Bos-
ton, and Director of the Dedham Choral Society. He comes from a
family of organists: his grandfather played the Hook/Ryder in Pilgrim
Church, Duxbury, Mass., for 35 years, and his great-uncle played
the 1848 Erben in Turner, Maine, for 66 years. Brian Jones is well
known as a recitalist and recording artist. He has played at several
OHS and AGO conventions, and recent recordings include A Boston
Organ Tour (featuring four outstanding Boston organs, including the
1863 Hook at Immaculate Conception Church) and, with Andrew
Gordon, pianist, Piano and Organ Duets at Longwood Gardens.

Robert R. Cornelison Frank L. Kuhlmann
. Vocal Music Teacher
Grove City College Wayne/Westland Public Schools
Grove City, Pennsylvania 16127 Westland, Michigan

NOACK_

THE NOACK ORGAN CO., INC.
MAIN AND SCHOOL. STREETS
GEORGETOWN, MASS. 01833
TELEPHONE (617) 352-6266
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Nahant Village Church, U.C.C.,Nahant, Massachusetts

E. & G. G. Hook & Hastings, Boston, Mass., Op. 925, 1878

Great: 58 notes

Op Diap 8' 58 m
Dulciana 8 58 m
Melodia 8 58w
Octave 4' 58 m
Twelfth 3'68m
Fifteenth 2 58 m
Pedale: 27 notes
Op Diap 16' 27 w
Bourdon 16' 27w

Pedal Movements:
2 unlabelled single-acting pedals
(Great piano and forte)
Gt. to Ped. (reversible pedal)
balanced Swell pedal (formerly by
lever & ratchet)

Bellows Signal

The Nahant Church started informally in
1820, and erected a frame church in 1832.
The Greek Revival building housed an 1834
George H. Holbrook bell;
the organ that appears on
the Wm. B. D. Simmons
opus list of 1858, for the
Congregational Church,
Nahant, was most likely in-
stalled in that structure. The
building was damaged by a
gale in 1862, but was
repaired and used until
1868, when it was taken
down. The present stone
and wood church, the work
of Wm. R. Ware and
Henry Van Brunt, ar-
chitects of Boston, was
dedicated 27 June 1869,
but the present organ was
not installed until 1879.
The Simmons organ may
have been used prior to in-
stallation of the E. & G. G.
Hook & Hastings.

The Village Church
started in 1841 as "The As-
sociation for the Support of
Public Worship in Nahant." In 1850, the
group adopted the name "Independent
Methodist Society" and on 25 Sept. 1851
they dedicated a small frame building,
designed by Melvin S. Young of Boston. The
bell was cast by Henry H. Hooper, Boston,
in 1851. Over the years, this group became
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Swell: 58 notes, enclosed

Op Diap TC 8 46m
Viola TC 8 46m
St'd Diap TC 8 46 w&m
St'd Diap Bass 812w
Violina 4' 58 m
Harmonic Flute 4' 58 m
Trumpet 8' 58 m
Oboe TC 8 46m
Bassoon 8 12m
Tremolo
Couplers:

Sw. to Gt. Coupler
Gt. to Ped. Coupler
Sw. to Ped. Coupler

depth-adjustment screws in keycheeks
mechanical action

the Nahant Congregational Church, then the
Nahant Protestant Church, and finally the
Village Church. A 2-7 tubular-pneumatic
Estey organ, Op. 684, was
installed in 19(9. In 1959,
the Nahant Church and the
Village Church merged as
the Nahant Village Church;
eventually the old Village
Church structure was aban-
doned, and the Estey was
moved into the chapel of
the stone church.

The E. & G. G. Hook
& Hastings was given in
1879 by Mrs. Wm. Ap-
pleton and Mrs. Arthur M.
Beebe in memory of Wm.
Appleton, who died in
1877. The Appleton coat of
arms (see inset) and other
appropriate carvings adorn
the handsome cherry case.
The organ cost $2,250 and
was hand-pumped until
1958. During one society
wedding in 1938, two boys
were engaged to pump the
bellows to make sure the
organ did not run out of wind.

At some time in the past, the pipework
was rescaled by one note to lower the pitch;
C became C#, etc. In recent years, the
feeders and reservoir were releathered by the
Andover Organ Co., and the organ can be
hand-pumped.




E. & G. G. Hook, Boston, Mass.,
Op. 523, 1869

Built for Christ Methodist Episcopal
Church, West Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania

Relocated through the Organ
Clearing House

Restored by Richard Nickerson,
Melrose, Massachusetts, 1985

Two manuals and pedal, 16 ranks,
mechanical action

First Parish in Arlington,
Unitarian-Universalist

Massachusetts Avenue and Pleasant.
Street, Arlington, Massachusetts

ALAN LAUFMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
POST OFFICEBOX 104 = | ’
HARRISVILLE, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03450
603/827-3055 *




Ste. Anne's Church
Salem, Massachusetts
Thursday, 13 August 1987, 2:45 p.m.

Rosalind Mohnsen, organ

Postlude in F J. Varley Roberts
(1841-1920)
Fugue in A minor G. F. Handel

(1685-1759)
Introduction, Variations & Finale on "God save the Queen, " Op. 29 William T. Best
(1826-1897)

La Devotion, Op. 8 No. 2 Eugene Thayer
(1838-1889)
Scherzo Harry Rowe Shelley
(1858-1947)
Pastorale, Op. 29 No. 3 Arthur Foote
(1853-1937)
March, from 10 Progressive Pedal Studies George W. Chadwick

(1854-1931)
Hymn: Rejoice, the Lord is King (Jubilate)

Rosalind Mohnsen holds a Bachelor of Music degree from the
University of Nebraska and Master of Music Degree and Performer's
Certtificate from Indiana University; she has also studied with Jean
Langlais in Paris. Currently she is Organist and Director of Music at
Immaculate Conception Church in Malden, Mass. She holds the
Ch. M. certificate from the American Guild of Organists, and is Mem-
bership Secretary of the Boston Chapter, A.G.O. Well known locally
as a recitalist, she has played at several previous OHS conventions.

Rosalind Mohnsen
Recitals
10 Fellsway East Malden, Mass. 02148
Byron Carol
PEARSON TETI
TRUMPET
Oberlin College ORGAN Indiana University
Conservatory of Pennsylvania
Oberlin, Ohio 44074 Indiana, Penna. 15701
216/775-8262 412/357-7918







Ste. Anne's Church R.C., 290 Jefferson Street, Salem, Massachusetts

W. K. Adams & Son, Providence, R. 1., 1885

Relocated through the Organ Clearing House, Harrisville, New Hampshire
Restored by the Hawkes Organ Co., Saugus, Mass., 1986

Great: 58 notes

Open Diapason 8' 58 m
Dulciana 8' 58 m
Melodia TC 8 46w
Unison Bass 8 12w
Octave 4 58 m
Quinte 22/3 58 m
Super Octave 2' 58 m
Mixture (1 1/3) V232 m
Pedal: 27 notes
Bourdon 16' 27w

Pedal Movements:
2 unlabelled single-acting pedals
(Gr. piano and forte)
Great to Pedal (reversible)
balanced Swell pedal

Bellows Signal

This French-speaking Roman Catholic
parish was founded in 1901; its frame build-
ing housed a second-hand 2-17 1852 George
Stevens (see inset), originally in St. James'
R. C. Church in Salem. The church and

organ were
destroyed by
fire in 1982.
The present
building,
designed by

Dennis Keefe of
Boston, was
dedicated 23
August 1986.
The organ
was built for the
Hope Street
Methodist Epis-
copal Church in
Providence,
Rhode Island;
around 1928 it
was given by
that church to
the  Methodist
Tabernacle in
the  Olneyville
section of
Providence. The Tabernacle building was
subsequently sold to Trinity Assemblies of
God. In 1985, the building was purchased by
Richard Sciolto, who converted it to offices,
offering the organ for sale through the Organ
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Swell: 58 notes, enclosed

Lieblich Gedackt TC 16' 46 w
Gedackt (unencl.) 16' 12w
Violin Diapason 8 58 m
Viola 8 58 m
Stopd Diapason TC 8 46w
Stopped Dia. Bass 8 12w
Violina 4' 58 m
Harmonic Flute 4' 58 m
Oboe TC 8 46m
Bassoon 8 12m
Tremulant

Couplers:

Sw. to Gr. Coupler

Gr. to Ped. Coupler

Sw. to Ped. Coupler
mechanical action

Clearing House, which recommended the in-
strument to Barbara Owen, consultant for
Ste. Anne's Church.

Some of the original center front section
of the walnut case is intact; most of the rest
was built for
this installation.
The organ still
has its original
unique double-
wedge reser-
voir, with the
midframe  at-
tached to the
well at one
end, and to the
top at the other
end. The Mix-
ture IV replaces
a missing
Trumpet 8', it-
self situated on
the Great chest
where the
Super Octave
2' was original-
ly located, the
Super Octave
2' having been
moved to a jump slide at the back of the
chest. Voicer's inscriptions found on the
pipework include "Louis F. Adams" and "L.
F. Adams / Voicer / Dec 6 '85."




Essex Institute
Salem, Massachusetts
Thursday, 13 August 1987, 4:00 and 4:30 p.m.

Harold Knight, organ

Presentation of Historic Organs Plaque Barbara Owen, Member
OHSS Historic Organs Committee

Introduction and Variation on Old Hundred John Zundel
(1815-1882)

Soft Organ Voluntary Manuel Emilio
(1812-1871)

Loud Organ Voluntary Manuel Emilio
Fugue No. 4 Charles Zeuner
(1795-1857)

Soft Organ Voluntary Arranged from Haydn Manuel Emilio
Soft Organ Voluntary Arranged from Mendelssohn's "Elijah" Manuel Emilio
Voluntary No. 9 in C Anonymous

(from "Collection of Voluntaries for Organ or Harpsichord composed by Dr. Green, Mr. Travers, and
Several Other Eminent Masters")

Hymn: Evening Hymn (Federal Street)

Harold Knight studied with Leslie Spelman at University of Red-
lands and is currently a Ph.D. candidate at the University of lowa; his
dissertation will be on the Salem organist Henry K. Oliver. He is
presently Music Director of Grace Church in Salem and on the faculty
of Salem State College. Long interested in American music, he has
received two grants from the Massachusetts Arts Council to present
concerts of American music in Salem and Beverly.

E. A. Boadway & Co.
Reed Organ Restorers and Dealers
Est. 1962
P.O. Box 863, Claremont, N.II. 03743
Tel. (603) 543-8142
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AUSTIN ORGANS, INC.

P.O. Box 2562
HUGH M. PIERCE PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33480
THOMAS R. THOMAS (305) 833-2087




Essex Institute

Salem, Massachusells

Thursday, 13 August 1987, 4:00 - 5:00 p.m.
"The Hook Family of Salem" (Exhibit)

Elias Hook

Grorge Hook

In addition to the materials on exhibit, researchers will also wish to consult Barbara Owen's
"A Salem Chamber Organ” in the Essex Institute Historical Collections, Vol. 110, No. 2 (April
1974.) .

CHRIST CHURCH
OF HAMILTON
AND WENHAM
South Hamilton,
Massachusetts

SCHUDI

ORGAN COMPANY

4426 Action Street
Garland, Texas 75042
Office: 214/343-3975







Essex Institute, 132 Essex Street, Salem, Massachusetts

George G. Hook, Makerjéglem, 1827

altered by E. & G. G. Hook & Hastings, Boston, 1872
partially restored by C. B. Fisk, Gloucester, Mass., 1973

Manual: 58 notes, GGG-f3, no low G#,
unenclosed

St'd Diap Treble TC 8 42w
St'd Diap Bass 8 16w
Octave 4' 58 w&m
Flute TG 4' 42w
Twelith TG22/3' 42m
Fifteenth 2' 58 m
Seventeenth 13/5'58m

(free reed, full compass, missing)

This elegant chamber organ was built for
W. W. Clap of Boston, and is often referred
to as E. & G. G. Hook Op. 1, even though it
was built by George G. Hook alone. In fact,
Elias Hook also built an organ on his own, for
Tabernacle Church in Salem, in 1828, and
there is reason to believe that the brothers
may each have built other instruments inde-
pendently before collaborating on what the
Hook opus list refers to as Op. 1, an 1829 in-
strument built for the Unitarian Church in
Danvers, Massachusetts. The 1827 instru-
ment had served a church (we do not know
where), for some years when E. & G. G.
Hook & Hastings took it in tradein 1871.

After some modernization, which involved
removal of the Seventeenth 1 3/5' and the
free reed, and replacement of the Flute 4'
with a Dulciana 8 TC (inscribed "S. P.
Kinsley Jan. 1872"), the organ was moved to
the Jamaica Plain residence of George G.
Hook and remained there after his death in
1880, in the possession of his two unmarried
children, Fred and Maria. In 1885, Maria
moved to Brookline, and the organ was
moved to her home in June of that year. She
died in 1923, having willed the organ to the
Essex Institute, and it was moved there in
1934 by Edward Lahaise of Hook & Hast-

Pedal Movements: (unlabelled brass
pedals)
1. Machine stop I: Octave 4',
Twelfth 2 2/3', Fifteenth 2',
Seventeenth 1 3/5', on
2. Machine stop II: 2 2/3', 2', 1 3/5' off
3. Pumping
4. unconnected pedal, perhaps for
symmetry
mechanical action

ings. In 1945, W. W. Laws of Beverly in-
stalled an electric blower and fitted the pipes
with slide tuners. The small neat stop labels
are probably 1872 replacements, and the
Octave was probably named Principal.

In 1965, C. B. Fisk, Inc. moved the organ
from what is now the Institute library to the
auditorium; it was clear at the time that the
organ needed a thorough restoration. That
work commenced in 1972, at which time the
1872 Dulciana 8' was removed; internal
evidence suggested that the original stop had
been a Flute 4' of the same scale and con-
struction as the St'd Diap Treble &', (a
wooden chimney flute), so a new Flute 4'
was made out of western red cedar, knot-
free aromatic cedar not being available. The
missing Seventeenth 1 3/5', which appeared
to have been of the same scale as the Twelfth
2 2/3', was replaced with old Fifteenth pipes
of the proper scale, thought to have been
made by George Stevens. In the absence of
sufficient evidence for an accurate reproduc-
tion, the free reed, activated by a slider lo-
cated under the chest, was not restored. The
organ was reopened with a concert given in
May 1973 by Daniel Pinkham and assisting
artists.

Inquiries are Cordially Invited

W. Zimmer & Sons

I NCORPORATED

Telephone (704) 588-1706

Mailing Address: P. O. Box 520
Pineville, N. C. 28134
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America's Oldest, Large 3-Manual Organ

Help Save the Organ, & Receive a Recording of It.

Any amount of contribution will be gratefully received. Those who send at least $35.00 may
choose to receive a gift from the Round Lake Historical Society: a stero, live recording from the
1984 and 1985 Annual Round Lake Festivals, duplicated in real-time, with Dolby, on a chrome
cassette. The 90-minute program includes performances of rarely-heard 19th century repertoire
for organ and orchestra, and for organ alone. Stephen Pinel, organist.

ROUND LAKE HISTORICAL SOCIETY
P.O. BOX 22
ROUND LAKE, NEW YORK 12151-0022




First (Old South) Presbyterian Church
Newburyport, Massachuselts
Thursday, 13 August 1987, 8:30 p.m.

Peter Sykes, organ

Presentation of Historic Organs Plaque

Jfrom Suite the First (1734)
Overture: Largo - Allegro
Adagio
Aria (slow)

Aria (fast)
Voluntary

Rondo

Sonata in B-flat Major, Op. 65 No. 4

Allegro con brio
Andante religioso
Allegretto

Allegro maestoso ¢ vivace

Praeludium in D Major, Wq 70, 7
Benedictus, Op. 59 No. 9

Fantasia in F minor, K. 608

Timothy Smith, Chairman
OH.SS Historic Organs Committce

Thomas Chilcot
(c. 1700-1766)

Thomas Loud

(d. 1834)

Dudley Buck
(1839-1909)

Felix Mendelssohn
(1809-1847)

C. P. E. Bach
(1714-1788)
Max Reger
(1874-1913)

W. A. Mozart
(1756-1791)

Hymn: Gracious Spirit, Dwell with Me (Redhead No. 76)

Second International

Peter Sykes holds degrees from New England Conservatory and
Concordia University (Montreal), and has studied with Gabriel
Chodos, Robert Schuneman, Yuko Hayashi, Mireille Lagacs,
Blanche Winogron, and Bernard Lagacé. He is active as a recitalist
on the organ, harpsichord, and fortepiano, and is represented by The
Keyboard Association; he is also active as an ensemble performer
with Musical Offering, Concertino Boston, Music at Eden's Edge, and
Ensemble Simphonie. In 1986 Sykes was a top prizewinner in the
Harpsichord Competition sponsored by
S.E.H.K.S., and has given numerous recitals in the Boston area and
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First (Old South) Presbyterian Church, Newburyport, Massachusetts

E. & G. G. Hook, Boston, Mass., Op. 396, 1866

Great: 56 notes

Bourdon Treble TC 16' 44w
Bourdon Bass 16' 12w
Op. Diap. 8 56 m
Keraulophon Treble TC 8 44m
Keraulophon Bass 8 12m
Viol da Gamba TC 8 44m
Melodia TC 844w
St. Diap. Bass 8 12w
Octave 4'56m
Flute Harmonique 4' 56 m
Twelfth 22/3 56m
Fifteenth 2' 56 m
Mixture I112m
Trumpet Treble TC 8 44m
Trumpet Bass 8 12m
Krum Horn TC 8 44m

Pedal Movements:
2 unlabelled pedals
(Gr. piano and forte)
Ratchet Swell pedal with built-in release
mechanical action

This church was founded as a direct result
of the preaching of the English revivalist
George Whitefield {1714-1770), who led the
"Great Awakening" in the 1740's. The
parishioners had formerly belonged to the
First and Third Churches in Newbury. The
present structure was built in 1756 of oak tim-
bers from the land of church members and
replaced a 1743 chapel; it was modernized in
1829, and assumed its present form. The
"trompe-l'oeil" decoration was painted in
1859. There is an 1802 Revere bell in the
1758 tower.

In September of 1828, "the proprietors of
the Old South Church discussed whether to
'purchase the Organ now in the...Church."
They did, that same year, at a cost of $800.
Barbara Owen states that the organ was
probably the work of Joseph Alley; it seems
to have been built on speculation. It was ex-
changed in 1838 for another, definitely
Alley's work; the new one cost $1,400, plus
$500 allowed for the old one. In 1866, the
present organ was installed at a cost of
$3,800, less $700 allowed for the 1838 in-
strument which was taken in trade. The new
organ was opened Wednesday evening, 17
October 1866, with a recital by J. H. Willcox,
who played works of his own, Haydn,
Batiste, Herold, Lefébure-Wély, Rinck,
Auber, and Meyerbeer.

At the left of the Pedale clavier are two
small wooden pedals which operate two
extra pipes (A# and B below low C) of the
D'ble Op. Diap. 16'--a very unusual con-
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Swell: 56 notes, enclosed

Op. Diap. TC 8 44m
AEolina 8' 56 w&m
St. Diap. Treble TC & 44w
St. Diap. Bass 8 12w
Violina 4' 56 m
Flauto Traverso 4' 56w
Picolo 2' 56 m
Oboe TC 8 44m
Bassoon 8 12m
Clarionet TC 8 44m
Tremulant

Pedale: 25 notes (+ 2 "thunder Pedals")

D'ble Op. Diap. 16' 27w
D'ble St. Diap. 16' 25w
Pedal Check

Couplers:

Swellto Great
Great to Pedale
Swell to Pedale

Bellows Signal

trivance perhaps built for some special need
of the organist in 1866. (J. H. Willcox in-
cluded his own "Representation of a Thunder
Storm" at the opening recital; even if the
extra pipes were not installed expressly for
that piece, they surely would have come in
handy for it. The two pipes appear to have
been second-hand in 1866.) The Trumpet 8'
and Oboe 8' both have brass wedges (in-
dicating that they were most likely made in
the Hook shop); the Clarionet 8' has cylindri-
cal resonators with adjustable conical tops.
The Krum Horn 8', a stop in several New-
buryport organs of the 1860's, is on a jump
slde, and is not in the original contract;
however, it seems to date from 1866 and
probably was added while the organ was still
in the shop. It has cylindrical resonators and
wooden wedges. The Flauto Traverso 4' is of
open wood, harmonic from MC., On TC of
the Oboe 8' is the inscription: "Voiced by
Charles H. Moore / #396 / Sept. 8, 1866."

The organ was carefully restored by the
Andover Organ Co. in 1974, under the su-
pervision of Robert Newton. The feeders
were not releathered and are in storage; the
inner of two sets of 9 horizontal swell shutters
are stored behind the organ. Otherwise, the
organ is intact and original. It is still cone-
tuned, and is a bit sharp. The rededication
recital was played 15 December 1974 by
Thomas Murray, and included works of
Bach, Daquin, Kousemaker, W. H. Clarke,
Franck, and Mendelssohn.
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Photograph courtesy of Jim Lewis and OHS Archives

Murray M. Harris Organ Co., Los Angeles, California
Annex to Main Factory, 1902

Visits to organs built by

Henry Erben, 1848
AEolian-Skinner, 1934

Austin Organ Co., 1923

John Bergstrom, 1897

A. B. Felgemaker, 1889

C. B. Fisk, 1984

Murray M. Harris, 1901, 1904
Hook & Hastings, 1888
Johnston Organ Co., 1915
W. W. Kimball, 1923

Los Angeles Art Organ Co., 1905
M. P. Moller, 1902

Henry Pilcher's Sons, 1903

E. M. Skinner, 1926

Thomas Whalley, 1909

Also a visit to the Wine Country, and a

visit to the Schoenstein Organ Factory

Warren Winkelstein, Jr., Chairman
560 Washington Avenue

Point Richmond, California 94801
415/236-7393
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T— MIX)NER Waynesboro, Virginia -
ORG AN Woodberry & Harris, Op. 111, 1893
'y Relocated through the Organ Clearing House
COMPANY . Rebuilt by the Andover Organ Co., 1986
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